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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Valued Shareholders, Customers and all 
Employees of Mobile World Group (MWG),

The year of 2018 marked a consecutive successful year 
of MWG while maintaining its position as the No. 1 
retailer in Vietnam by  revenue, net profit and store 
count. With nearly 2,190 stores of thegioididong.com, 
Dien May Xanh and Bach Hoa Xanh, the Company 
recorded consolidated net revenue of VND 86,500 billion 
and consolidated NPAT of VND 2,880 billion in FY2018, 
equivalent to 30% y-o-y growth for both MWG’s top- and 
bottom-line compared to FY2017. Although MWG is not 
a pure e-commerce platform, the Company had the 
highest revenue contribution of VND12,350 billion in the 
Vietnam’s total online retail sales value in 2018 and 
doubled its online turnover in FY2017. Thus, for the fifth 
consecutive year since listing, MWG has successfully 
accomplished the business plan approved by the 
General Meeting of Shareholders.

With the relentless efforts of more than 40,000 
employees, we are proud to be recognized in the TOP 50 
Best Big Public Companies in Asia 2018 by prestigious 
magazine Forbes and reached the 70th position in the 
TOP 500 Asia-Pacific Leading Retailers in 2018 voted by 
Retail Asia Magazine. Among the 14 ranked countries, 
most of the dominant positions belong to the operators 
of supermarkets, food stores, department stores and 
convenience stores. Therefore, the expansion to grocery 
retail business will concrete MWG’s sustainable 
development in the long-run. We believe that the 
Company will continue to maintain its leading position 
and the gap between MWG and other retailers in 
Vietnam will become bigger and bigger in the future.

Not only highly appreciated by investors and 
international organizations for the business 
performance, MWG is delighted to be honored for the 
fourth time in TOP 50 Vietnam Best Places to Work and 
won The Best Winner – “Effective HR Practice” at the 
Vietnam HR Awards 2018. The company always focuses 
on creating a dynamic and fair working environment 
where every staff are devoted, respected and have many 
opportunities for developments

Last year MWG continued to dominate the Vietnam’s 
technical consumer goods market with 45% phones 

market share and 35% consumer electronics market 
share. The positive market share gaining in 2018 was 
due to MWG's outstanding growth compared to the 
average performance of the whole market. In addition to 
the new store opening, the growth of the phones and 
consumer electronics retailing also came from 
optimizing revenue per store through (a) pro-actively 
converting from good-performing thegioididong.com 
stores to Dien May Xanh / Mini-Dien May Xanh stores; 
and (b) changing the layout at some Mini-Dien May 
Xanh stores to expand the number of SKUs and product 
display area. These breakthrough initiatives helped the 
Company increasing approx.30% -50% of the stores’ 
revenue after optimization while maintaining the rental 
and other operating expenses almost unchanged.

After many trials and strategic changes, 2018 was also 
a pivotal year of the Bach Hoa Xanh chain when the 
Company drastically moved almost the old-format 
stores located deeply in the residential areas to more 
crowded roads, focusing on fine-tuning the standard 
model of "fresh meats – live fishes" with wide range of 
fresh produce. Since August 2018, Bach Hoa Xanh 
began to implement a large-scaled format of up to 
300m2 store with bigger investment in diversified 
product assortment, located in densely populated areas 
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and near the wet markets. Bach Hoa Xanh also 
expanded its standard-format to neighboring provinces 
outside HCMC. With 405 stores by YE2018 and the 
stable average monthly sales per store of VND1.2 billion, 
Bach Hoa Xanh successfully achieved EBITDA 
break-even point (profit before tax, interest and 
depreciation) at the store-level.

At the end of 2018, MWG officially added a new "captain" 
- Mr Doan Van Hieu Em. After more than 10 years of 
dedication and holding many key management 
positions of the Company, he was appointed to the CEO 
position of The Gioi Di Dong JSC, the MWG’s subsidiary 
operating thegioididong.com and Dien May Xanh - two 
largest revenue-generating retail chains of MWG. The 
appointment of an 8X CEO for leading the multi-billion 
dollar company also shows two unique points of MWG. 
Firstly, this Company empowers talents who have the 
strong operational capability and imbued with the 
Corporate Cultural for taking leading positions. 
Secondly, it is also to allow young people, through 
rotating many positions in the Company to improve 
skillsets and build up their leadership.  Mr. Tran Kinh 
Doanh - the predecessor - with experiences in leading 
Dien May Xanh to successfully expanded and topped 
the consumer electronics market in the last 3 years, will 
devote his best efforts to bring Bach Hoa Xanh to 
become the No. 1 foods and FMCGs retailer in the 
coming time.

With the focus and ambition of the new Executives, 
MWG targets more than VND108,000 billion 

consolidated revenue and VND3,500 billion NPAT for 
FY2019. In order to conquer this challenging goal, MWG 
will continue to open new stores in areas where 
thegioididong.com and Dien May Xanh are still able to 
increase sales and market share, in parallel with the 
effort to optimize each store's revenue through store 
conversion, changing store layout, adding new 
categories and diversifying options for the current 
product groups. In particular, the consumer electronics 
retailing business will continue to sustain a high growth 
rate and be the key growth driver for the whole group, 
aiming to account for approx. 40% of the electronics 
market sales value in Vietnam. MWG expects to have 
more than 1,900 thegioididong and Dien May Xanh 
stores nationwide by YE2019. Online retailing will 
continue to make a real difference to the market, offering 
fast and reliable shopping experiences for customers.

Although its contribution in the whole group’s revenue 
has not been significant yet, Bach Hoa Xanh chain is 
expected to double its FY 2018’s sales with estimated 
more than 700 stores operating by YE2019. Bach Hoa 
Xanh will continue to solidify its foundation in 2019 for 
the aggressive expansion nationwide after it becomes 
profitable at stores and distribution center level. MWG 
targets that the gross profit generated from Bach Hoa 
Xanh can entirely cover the operating expenses of all 
stores and distribution centers, excluding the G&A 
expenses at the company level, latest by Dec 2019. 
Thus, the chain needs to focus on improving gross profit 
margin through (a) actively working with fast-moving 

consumer goods (FMCGs) suppliers to get better deal 
terms, good marketing budget and attractive consumer 
promotions, (b) reviewing the process of handling and 
increasing efficiency in the supply chain of fresh 
produce. Bach Hoa Xanh will also research and 
implement advanced-technology solutions to enhance 
productivity at stores, distribution centers and logistic 
activities. In particular, Bachhoaxanh.com (online 
business) will be the highlight in 2019 when focusing on 
diversifying product offerings and improving customers' 
online shopping experiences. Bachhoaxanh.com 
targets to dominate the online retail market for foods 
and FMCGs in the future.

Last but not least, I would like to express my gratitude to 
MWG’s Shareholders for your trust in Mobile World 
Group in years. We will always endeavor to deserve with 
your belief. We commit to operate MWG in with 
high-level of transparency and bring sustainable values 
for the long-term investors.

We wish you all a happy, prosperous and successful 
New Year.
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HIGHLIGHTS
2018

NO. 1 RETAILER

IN VIETNAMMWG

NET
REVENUE 86,516 BILLION

VND

NPAT 2,880 BILLION

VND

405 Stores
Stores

Stores

Located in HCMC, neighbor ing
prov inces:  Binh Duong, Dong Nai
and Ben Tre

Nat ionwide

750
Nationwide

1,032

40,000 Employees

Nearly
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Being wholehearted
to customers

Integrity

Mutual affection
and Teamwork

Honesty

Taking
responsibility

Being passionate
in working

CORE VALUES OF MWGERS

Core values are applied 
consistently in all 

activities, spreading 
from Board of Manage-
ment to every employee 

of the Company.

This is who we are.
This is what you can rely on. 

MWG continuously 
innovates to offer 

customers outstanding 
experiences, based on 
our customer-centric 
culture and integrity.

MWG 2020 is the most 
powerful retail group of 
diversified categories, 
the market leader in B2C 
e-commerce.

VISION, MISSION,
CORE VALUES
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5 YEARS PERFORMANCE
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

 

Offer mobile phones, 
tablets, laptops, 
accessories, sim, 
cards and value-added 
services

1,032 stores
Offer mobile phones, tablets, laptops, 
accessories, sim, cards and value-add-
ed services, electronics (TVs, sound 
system...), white goods (refrigerators, 
washing machines, air conditioners), 
small appliances and kitchen wares. 

750 stores

Offer fresh produce and fast 
moving consumer goods 
(FMCGs)

405 stores

Company name:

Charter Capital (till 31 Dec 2018):
4,434,961,780,000 VND

Registered No.: 0306731335
issued by Binh Duong DPI

Share code: MWG

Add: 222 Yersin, Phu Cuong Ward,
Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong
province, Vietnam

Tel: (+8428) 8125960
Fax: (+8428) 8125962

Website: www.mwg.vn

MOBILE WORLD INVESTMENT 
CORPORATION



10

Mobile World Investment Corporation

2010

2018

Aggressively expanded the thegioid-
idong.com store network nationwide. By 
the end of 2010, consumer electronics 
retail chain was launched under the name 
of Dienmayxanh

thegioididong.com and dienmayxanh.com: dominated the Vietnam's 
technical consumer goods retailing market with 45% and 35% market 
shares of phones and consumer electronics retail sales value respec-
tively, constantly improving the quality customer service.

Completed the acquisition of majority stake in Tran Anh Digital JSC.

Bach Hoa Xanh: expanded the store network to many districts in Ho Chi 
Minh City and neighboring provinces, officially accomplished the 
EBITDA break-even point at the store level.

Completed the minority investment in An Khang Retail JSC which the An 
Khang pharmacy chain.

2004

In March 2004 - Mobile World Co., Ltd. was 
established

In October 2004 – the first store was launched.

The customer services and the website 
www.thegioididong.com were paid special 

attention right on the first days.

2007

Received the first 
investment from 
Mekong Capital, MWG 
was transformed into 
a joint stock company

2011

2014

As of 31/12/2011, MWG 
had 200 stores, increased 5 
times compared to its store 
count in 2009

In March 2012, the new store opening in Bac Giang Province 
marked thegioididong.com becoming the first and the only mobile 
phone retailer with nationwide network.

Dien may xanh expanded to 9 provinces and cities with 12 stores.

2016

In July 2014, MWG successfully 
listed its 62,723,171 shares on 
HOSE. MWG recorded an robust 
growth with 60% increase in 
store count and 160% increase 
in Net Profit After Tax compared 
to 2013 results.

2012

MWG dominated the phone  
retailing market with 900 
stores thegioididong stores 
and became the first nation-
wide CE retailer in Vietnam 
with over 250 stores. 

Bach hoa xanh started its 
pilot phase.

2017

Thegioididong.com: Maintained the market leader 
position with more than 1000 stores.

Dien may xanh: Marked an aggressive expansion with over 
640 stores covering all provinces and cities in Vietnam by end 
of 2017, the total number of stores in the nationwide was 640

160%

Profit 
after tax 

63
provinces & cities
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Established in 2004, from an 
inceptive e-commerce model 
with a website introducing 
product information, Thegio-
didong.com has developed to 
become the No.1 mobile 
phone retailer in Vietnam with 
the extensive store network. 

At the end of 2018, Thegioid-
idong continued to affirm its 
leading position with over 
1,000 stores nationwide. The 
stores with area ranging from 
100 to 200 sqm specialize in 
selling... 

Thegioididong stores special-
ize in retailing mobile phones, 
tablets, laptops, accessories, 
sim cards, network 
services,...

In July 2016, Dien May Xanh 
completed the store coverage 
in 63 provinces and cities 
nationwide. The stores with 
area ranging from 500 to 
1000 sqm specialize in 
selling...: TV, refrigerators, 
washing machines, air condi-
tioners, microwaves, home 
appliances, mobile phones, 
tablets, laptops, accessories, 
sim cards, network services, 
… In addition, the mini-stores 
with the size from 350 - 
500m2 helped Dien May Xanh 
to come closer to the 
customers and allowed this 
chain to be easily accelerated 
during expansion phase. With 
more than 100 stores was 
opened in 2018 (including 
newly added stores and 
some converted stores from 
good-performing thegioid-
idong stores), the total store 
count of Dien May Xanh 
reached 750 by the year end.

In late of 2015, the first Bach 
Hoa Xanh store was officially 
launched with the slogan of 
“Buy Fast – Buy Cheap”. In 
2018, after finding the "Win-
ning Formula" thanks to 
strategic changes in the 
location quality and diversi-
fied product assortment, 
focusing on fresh produce, 
Bach Hoa Xanh quickly 
expanded to almost all 
districts of HCM City and 
neighboring provinces with 
more than 400 stores.

After 3 years since its incep-
tion, the retail chain of mobile 
devices, accessories and 
telecommunication services 
in Cambodia had 10 stores in 
Phnom Penh, gaining more 
and more interests from local 
customers.

MWG operates the retail chains 
under brands: thegioididong.com, 
bigphone.com, DIENMAYXANH 
(dienmayxanh.com), BACHHOAX-
ANH (Bachhoaxanh.com).

EXTENSIVE STORE
NETWORK
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MARKET OVERVIEW

MOBILE PHONES (TEL) MARKET SHARES CONSUMER ELECTRONICS (CE) MARKET SHARES

45%
55%

MWG OTHERS MWG OTHERS

35% 65%
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The phone manufacturers have capture the consumers' demands better, constantly improve and
launch new products.
Flexible and simple financing options allow customers easily own their favorite products.

The CE market is still fragmented. This creates opportunities for a few companies to gain more market shares.
The household penetration of consumer electronics products (washing machines, refrigerators, air-conditioners ...) 
in Vietnam is still low

Market size of grocery retailing is over US $ 60 billion, accounting for 60% of the total retail in Vietnam.
More than 90% of the market 's demand is served by traditional trade channels. There are not many companies 
participating in mini-mart segment.

Online shopping become a future consumption trend.
Huge potential of online growth for Omni channel for retailers with extensive physical store network.

The young population of over 90 million people 
have increasing consumption over years. 

GROWTH
POTENTIAL
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2018 BUSINESS RESULTS
The year of 2018 marked a consecutive successful year of 
MWG while maintained its position as the No. 1 retailer in 
Vietnam with $3,7 billion net revenue.

Description

Net Revenue 86,516 86,390 100% 66,340 30%

Net Profit After Tax 2,880 2,603 111% 2,207 31%

MWG store count
nationwide 

1,032

750

405 2,187

Actual 
2018

Actual 
2017

Target 
2018

Completion 
rate

Growth
rate

As of 31 Dec 2018, MWG operated 2.178 stores, including 
1,032 thegioididong.com stores, 750 Dienmayxanh stores 
and 405 Bachhoaxanh stores.

1714

642

283

1782

750

405

2017

2018

Stores selling 
phones, tablets, 

laptops & 
accessories 

(TGDD and DMX)

Stores selling 
consumer 
electronics 

(DMX)

Store selling 
fresh foods 
and FMCGs 

(BHX)

NUMBER OF STORES BY CATEGORIES
(PRODUCT GROUPS)
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BUSINESS PLAN

2 0 1 9TGDD and DMX: In 2019, consumer 
electronics retailing is still the main pillar 
for MWG’s revenue growth, targeting to 
reach 40% market shares in Vietnam. 
Phones retailing business continues to 
maintain the leading position and positive 
growth rate compared to the overall 
market.

Online: continues to maintain the leading 
position in Vietnam’s online retailing.

Bach Hoa Xanh: Bach Hoa Xanh will 
continue to solidify its foundation in 
2019 for the aggressive expansion 
nationwide after BHX becomes profit-
able at stores and DC level. Although 
revenue contribution of BHX in MWG’s 
top line is not significant, the grocery 
retail business is expected to achieve 
highest y-o-y growth. MWG targets that 
the gross profit generated from BHX can 
entirely cover the operating expenses of 
all stores and distribution centers, 
excluding the G&A expenses at the 
company level, latest by Dec 2019

CONSOLIDATED NET REVENUE
billion VND

GROWTH

CONSOLIDATED NET PROFIT AFTER TAX
billion VND

GROWTH

108,468

3,571

25%

24%
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tai
Co-founder
Chairman 

•

•

Graduated from University of 
Economics of Ho Chi Minh City, 
majoring in Finance and Accounting.

MBA Degree from the Centre 
FrancoVietnamien de formation a 
la Gestion – CFVG.

• Hold various key positions in 
the Company as Finance and 
Accounting, Marketing, 
Logistics, Store Network 
Development, and Executive 
Management.

Mr. Tran Kinh Doanh
Member of Board of Directors

•

•

Graduated from the University of 
Economics of Ho Chi Minh City, 
majoring in Economics.

Hold various key positions in the 
Business Development Division 
since 2007

• Led the successful expansion of 
thegioididong.com and Dien 
may xanh systems in 63 
provinces and Cities.

• 2013 - Member of Board of Directors

• 2014 - 09/2018: CEO of Mobile 
World JSC

• 2016 - currently: Executive 
Chairman of Bach Hoa Xanh 
Trading JSC.

Mr. Tran Le Quan
Co-founder
Member of Board of Directors

• Telecommunications engineer

• Set up the initial platform for the 
Company

• 2004 – 2007: Director of Mobile 
World JSC

• Currently: An independent, 
non-executive member of Board 
of Directors

Mr. Dieu Chinh Hai Trieu
Co-founder
Member of Board of Directors

• Graduated from the University of 
Science, majoring in Information 
Technology

• Set up the initial platform for the 
information technology system of 
the Company. 
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Mr. Thomas Lanyi
Member of Board of Directors

•

•

Austrian citizen

Director of CDH Investment 
Advisory Pte. Ltd.

• An independent member of 
Board of Directors.

Mr. Robert Willett
Member of Board of Directors

•

•

British citizen

Former CEO of Best Buy 
International

• An independent member of 
Board of Directors and Senior 
Advisor of the Company since 
April 2013

Mr. Dang Minh Luom
Member of Board of Directors

• Bachelor degree in Business 
Administration, majoring in 
Human Resources Management

• Human Resources Director of 
Mobile World JSC since 2007

• Member of Board of Directors 
since May 2014. 

• Currently: Human Resources 
Director of the Company 

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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Mr. Tran Kinh Doanh
Executive Chairman of 
Bach Hoa Xanh Trading
JSC

Mr. Dang Minh Luom
HR Director of
Mobile World JSC

Mr. Do Tuan Anh
Head of Logistics & 
Supply  Chain

Ms. Le Thao Trang
Head of Marketing

Mr. Bui Ngọc Tin
Head of IT

Mr. Doan Trung Hieu
Head of Construction
Maintenance and After
Sales Services 

Mr. Vu Dang Linh
CFO

Ms. Hoang Khanh Chi
Head of Customer Services

Ms. Le Thi Thu Trang
Head of Investments & IR

Mr. Nong Van Dung
CEO of Bach Hoa Xanh 
Trading JSC

Mr. Pham Van Trong
CEO of Mobile World
Information Technology Ltd.

Mr. Doan Van Hieu Em
CEO of Mobile World
JSC
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Mr. Tran Huy Thanh Tung
Chief of Board of Supervisors 

• 2007 – 2013: Chief Accountant 
and CFO of the Company

• Former-Assistant Manager, Acting 
Manager - Audit of KPMG Vietnam 
Company

• At the end of 2013 - Currently: 
Chief of the Board of
Supervisors

Mr. Hoang Huu Hung
Member of Board of Supervisors 

• Head of Internal Control Depart-
ment of Mobile World JSC.

• Bachelor of Accounting in Nha 
Trang University

• Bachelor of Laws in Ho Chi Minh 
City University of Law

• Member of the Board of Supervisors 
- Term 2017 – 2020.

Mrs. Do Thi Loan
Member of Board of Supervisors 

• Member of the Board of 
Supervisors of Mobile World JSC 
since March 2018

BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS
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ENVIRONMENT AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Contribution to the Community

Apart from e�orts to achieve our business targets, 
our commitments to investors, we also interest in 
extracurricular activities for employees, contribu-
tion to the community and society. MWG always 
fulfills the obligations of tax payment and compul-
sory insurance for all full-time employees of the 
Company.

In addition, through many open sharing sessions 
given by MWG Board of Directors on Corporate 
Governance skills such as ERP Management 
System, Human Resources, Corporate Culture ... 
we are pleased and proud to share our real experi-
ences and inspire the young entrepreneurs, 
start-ups in order to save their time, reduce their 
costs and improve their operation effectively.

Labor relations department as well as Trade Union 
of the Company always accompany with our 
staffs, go along to help them overcome obstacles, 
lend a hand to support and connect all staffs when 
nesscesary.

Energy saving

At the same time, we continued to maintain our 
activities and campaigns to improve the energy 
saving awareness at our office and all stores 
nationwide.

All of our stores are equipped with energy saving 
and environment friendly equipment such as 
equipment made from recyclable materials, led 
lights, auto-o� timers, fully meeting requirements 
on fire prevention.

Since 2013, all MWG stores have been equipped 
with an automatic sensor for sign board lights, 
they turn on at 6:00 PM or when it is dark enough 
and turn o� automatically at 10:00 PM.

In addition, a smart system was designed to auto-
matically turn on lights and air conditioners at 
7:00 AM and automatically turn o� at 11:00 PM 
every day at the stores.
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HUMAN RESOURCE
DEVELOPMENT
At MWG, we conceive that: “A boat cannot head to the sea without a driver and cannot 
reach the big ocean without a crew, whether fishes are abundant or not, it is necessary 
that a number of people must work together”

Attracting talented people

MWG always attracts and welcomes all candidates who wish to work in a dynamic, 
creative and constantly developing environment with a clear roadmap.

MWG always creates a friendly working environment that people can quickly integrate 
and adapt.

Modern and cohesive working environment

MWG always aims to create an open working environment, where all employees are 
free to create, well developed with a fair roadmap and attractive pay raise schedule, 
and always motivates all employees to strive.

In addition to work, MWG always cares about employees' lives. Sports and emulation 
activities are held annually and attract many employees: MWG Cup Award for Support 
Division in HCM, League Football League,... 

Effective human resource training and development

The learning willing is always highly appreciated at MWG. We regularly organize train-
ing courses for new employees, training programs in combination with picnic, training 
courses in professional development, soft skills, customer care and leadership skill, ... 
In addition, there are courses exclusively for sales staff and E-learning tests to help 
employees actively to get updated of new products...

At MWG, "99% of the company's management team is promoted internally", we 
always want every employee at MWG to have a clear promotion roadmap and 
develop by constantly learning, and creating at work.

 

In 2018 MWG was honor to receive HR Award 2018:

- Effective working performance management

- Effective talented people attracting

- Best working environment

- Effective HR training and development

In addition, MWG also achieved the highest award in Group B: EXCELLENT 
ENTERPRISE WITH EFFECTIVE HUMAN RESOURCE POLICIES
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS (“BOD”)

Items

Net revenue 86,516 86,390 100% 66,340 30%

Profit before Tax

Actual 
2018

Actual 
2017

Target
2018

Actual vs. 
Target

Growth
rate

Net Profit After Tax 2,880 2,603 111% 2,207 31%

BOD’S REPORT ON COMPANY PERFORMANCE IN 2018

MWG recorded the consolidated net revenue of VND 86,516 billion (+30% y-o-y 
growth) and net profit after tax of VND 2,880 billion (+31% y-o-y growth) for the 
whole year of 2018. As a result, MWG fulfilled 100% of the revenue target and 
111% of the net profit target for FY2018.

Online revenue for the 12 months of 2018 reached VND 12,350 billion, equivalent 
to 14.3% the MWG’s net revenue. Online turnover recorded +116% y-o-y growth 
and achieved 123% the target of 2018.

The total number of MWG stores increased from 1,997 at YE2017 to 2,197 at YE 
2018, including: 1.032 thegioididong.com (TGDD) stores, 750 Dien May Xanh 
stores, 405 Banh Hoa Xanh stores and 10 Big Phone stores.

MWG continued to convert a number of TGDD stores to mini-DMX and DMX 
stores or upgrading from mini-DMX to DMX stores. The conversion by expanding 
area and adding consumer electronics SKUs allowed the post-conversion stores 
recorded an average of 50% revenue growth compared to their previous perfor-
mance. To be considered for the conversion, a TGDD store has to meet following 
criteria: (1) high revenue; (2) located at areas with low density of modern CE 
retail stores; and (3) possibility to negotiate with surrounding landlords for 
expansion.

The revenue of BHX exceeded VND4,270 billion net turnover for the whole year 
of 2018, approx. tripled its FY2017 sales. BHX accomplished break-even on 
store- level EBITDA (profit before taxes, interests and depreciation) in Dec 2018

Board of Management (BOM) and all employees have strongly committed to 
pursue the culture named “Customer-centricity”. Every idea and action aim to 
bring excellent experiences to customers.

Performance highlights 2018:

MWG won national and international awards by prestigious institutions such as:
a. Five Vietnam HR Awards 2018 including “Effective attracting talents”, “Effec-
tive work management”, “Effective human resource training and development”, 
“Effective working environment” and “The Best Company with Effective HR Prac-
tices” (for the corporations having less than 15 years of operation).
b. The runner-up award in Top 50 best performing companies in Vietnam in 2018 
honored by The Business Review (Nhip Cau Dau Tu) magazine.
c. The 2nd largest private enterprises in Vietnam 2018 (VNR 500) in 2018.
d. The 70th in the Top 500 Asia-Pacific Retailers and the only Vietnamese 
company be ranked in Top 100 leading retailers in Asia-Pacific in 2018.

The audited financial statements are posted at: www.mwg.vn

•

•

•

•

•

Unit: VND billion
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No

1 Nguyen Duc Tai Chairman

BOD member

BOD member

BOD member

BOD member

BOD member

BOD member

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Tran Le Quan

Tran Kinh Doanh

Dieu Chinh Hai Trieu

Robert Willett

Thomas Lanyi

Dang Minh Luom

2

3

4

5

6

7

BOD member
Attendance

ratePosition
Number of
meetings

No

1 0101/NQ/HĐQT-2018 05/01/2018

Resolutions/Decisions No Issued Date Content

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF THE BOD IN 2018

Summary of BOD meetings in 2018 is as follows:

Thus, the Company successfully completed all missions in 2018 which were
assigned by General Meeting of Shareholders.

(Independent members: 3/7, non-executive members: 4/7)

Approval on private placement 
share issuance

2 0104/NQ/HĐQT-2018 05/04/2018 Approval of paying cash 
dividend in 2017

3 0204/NQ/HĐQT-2018 09/04/2018
Approval of raising charter 
capital for subsidiaries

4 0304/NQ/HĐQT-2018 26/04/2018
Approval of granting convertible 
loans

5 0308/NQ/HĐQT-2018 21/08/2018
Approval of raising charter 
capital for subsidiaries

6 0110/NQ/HĐQT-2018 08/10/2018
Approval of paying stock 
dividend

7 05/NQ/HĐQT-2018 21/11/2018
Approval of raising charter 
capital for BHX Trading JSC

8 07/2018/HĐQT/NQ-MWG 29/11/2018

Approval of documents 
prepared for ESOP issuance to 
Executive Board and
Key Management Personnel

9 06/2018/HĐQT/NQ-MWG 29/11/2018
Approval of ESOP issuance to 
Executive Board and Key 
Management Personnel

10 0112/2018/HĐQT/NQ-MWG 21/12/2018 Approval of business plan in 
2019

Through regular/extraordinary AGM meetings and obtaining the shareholders’ 
votes in the form of written ballots, the BOD issued the following resolutions/de-
cisions in 2018:
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Mobile World Investment Corporation
ACTION PLAN OF THE BOD IN 2019

In 2019, the BOD has general action plan as follows:

Supervise BOM’s activities to achieve 2019 business plan.

Liaise with Board of Supervisors to enhance capability of monitoring and inspecting BOM’s 
activities in order to comply with professional standards of a public company.

Continue to hold regular and extraordinary meetings to get timely feedbacks from CEO and 
executive Board members so that BOD will give appropriate recommendations for BOM’s 
execution.

•

•

•

Items
Actual
2018

Actual
2017

Target
2018

Actual vs. 
Target

Growth
rate

86,516

3,786

2,880

17,446

5,926

4,751

28,123

8,245

9,685

8,983

1,210

28,123

100.1%

109.7%

110.7%

66,340

2,809

2,207

12,050

6,813

3,960

22,823

7,373

8,341

5,909

1,200

22,823

30.4%

34.8%

30.5%

86,390

3,451

2,603

Net Revenue

Profit Before Tax

Profit After Tax

Inventories

Other short-term assets

Long-term assets

Total Assets

Account Payables

Other short-term liabilities

Owners’ equity

Long-term liabilities

Total Shareholders’’ Equity
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OF SUPERVISORS (“BOS”)
MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF BOS
BOS includes 3 members as follow:

No Full name Title

1 Tran Huy Thanh Tung Head of the Board

2 Hoang Huu Hung Member

3 Do Thi Loan Member

OPERATION OF THE BOS

•

•
•

REPORT ON OPERATION RESULT OF THE BOS

Income Statement 2018 2017 Growth rate

Net Revenue 86,516 66,340 30.4%

Profit before tax 3,786 2,809 34.8%

Net Profit after tax 2,880 2,207 30.5%

To supervise the execution of General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolutions. 
To check the rationality, legality in business activities according the Resolu-
tions of AGM 2018;
To supervise the operation and management of BOD and BOM;
To check the rationality, legality and prudentially in accounting and preparing 
financial statements.

In 2018, Board of Supervisors (BOS) held meetings to assess the accounting 
and financial activities, business results and corporate governance in the first 6 
months and the whole year 2018. The BOS‘s activities do not incur any opera-
tional expenses.

A. To supervise the execution of General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolution
Resolutions approved by Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2018 that are 
fully executed,
Payment of cash dividend with the ratio of 15% (VND 1,500 per share) for 
existing shareholders.

Payment of stock dividend with the ratio 3:1 (each shareholder owns 1 
share at the time of closing list of shareholders will receive 3 additional 
shares)

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

Issuance of shares under the ESOP program for employees: MWG has issued 
12,729,511 shares (equivalent to 3% of outstanding shares at date of issuance) 
to 3,830 employees in December 2018. 
Increase of charter capital for The Gioi Di Dong Information Technology Co., Ltd 
to VND538 billion (August 2018)
Increase of charter capital for Bach Hoa Xanh Trading JSC up to VND2,601 billion 
(28/11/2018) for expansion of Bach Hoa Xanh chain.
B. To supervise the operation and management of The BOD and BOM
The BOD held 10 meetings in 2018, the BOD’s members attended meetings fully 
as Company’s regulations.
Strictly complying with MWG’s corporate governance and regulations.
Optimizing the revenue per store of thegioididong.com, Dien May Xanh and 
Bach Hoa Xanh chains.
Improving gross profit margin to bring Bach Hoa Xanh chain to EBITDA break- 
even on store-level in December 2018
Continuously improving customer services is the top priority.
Conclusion: 
The BOD executed properly the resolutions of Annual General Meeting of Share-
holders in 2018. Issued BOD’s resolutions were complied with assigned authori-
ty, content of these resolutions complying with of AGM’s resolutions, as well as 
Vietnam’s laws and regulations.
C. To review the financial statements:
BOS agreed with audited company named Ernst & Young Co., Ltd regarding 
financial statements of the Company prepared for the fiscal year ended on 
31/12/2018. The financial statements were presented prudently and reason-
ably, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and provisions of 
current laws.
Performance highlights (unit: VND billions)
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OPERATION PLAN IN 2019Balance sheet Closing balance Beginning balance

The net revenue and NPAT of the company exceeded the targets approved by 
the General Meeting of Shareholders

D. To supervise the operation

1. Risk management

Risk management of the Company in 2018 has improved significantly and more 
closely connected with the business operation. BOS participated fully in BOD’s 
meetings and Management teams to assess risks at company level and process-re-
lated risks as well as regularly discuss and give recommendations to BOM.

2. Inspection of the Internal Audit Faction

Internal Audit Faction continues to be led by the BOS and is independent with the 
Company's operation. Internal Audit have necessary resources and right to access 
to information for auditing. Internal Audit team also has right to directly approach 
the Chairman of the Board and the BOS to report about the audited results.

Assessment of the compliance with laws, provisions and regulations:

BOS acknowledges that there is no material risk in the internal control system 
as well as the compliance with laws, provisions and regulations of the Compa-
ny’s employees and management team. In 2018, the audit findings have been 
identified and included in criteria for evaluating the performance of each related 
staff to enhance significantly the awareness of compliance of management 
team and employees. Action plans to improve the control system as recom-
mended by the Internal Audit Function are also executed by the Company’s 
departments.

•

BOS will continue to promote supervision through Internal Audit Function, 
independent auditors and direct activities of BOS’s members.

1. Internal Audit
The Internal Audit Function will continue to check based on the Company's risk 
portfolio, to ensure that internal controlling is carried out for the most important 
business risks. The scope of audit works will be expanded to enhance the 
compliance of Company’s employees and management team.

2. Supervise the operation of BOD and BOM
To attend regular meetings with the BOD, to monitor the execution of 
decisions/resolutions approved by General Meeting of Shareholders in 2018.
To ensure all resolutions and decisions of the BOD complying with the Compa-
ny's regulation as well as Vietnamese Laws and regulations.
To monitor the Company's business operation in accordance with business 
strategies presented in the meeting.

3. Independent Audit
BOS will continue to maintain effective communication with independent 
auditors, actively check the quality and timely update the results of financial 
statements. 

•

•

•

Current assets

Non – current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Liabilities

Equity

Total resources

17,930

1,210

19,140

8,983

28,123

15,714

1,200

16,914

5,909

22,823

23,372

4,751

28,123

18,863

3,960

22,823
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TRANSACTIONS,
REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS
1. TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS / RELATED PARTIES

No. Transactions
Relationship to
internal shareholders

Opening owned shares Closing owned shares Reason for increase / decrease
(buy, sell, transfer, bonus …)No. of shares Percentage No. of shares Percentage

Nguyen Duc Tai

Nguyen Duc Tai

Tran Huy Thanh Tung

Tran Huy Thanh Tung

Dieu Chinh Hai Trieu

Dieu Chinh Hai Trieu

Tran Kinh Doanh

Tran Kinh Doanh

Vu Dang Linh

Vu Dang Linh

Vu Dang Linh

Ly Tran Kim Ngan

Ly Tran Kim Ngan

Nguyen Thi Thu Thao

Nguyen Thi Thu Thao

Nguyen Thi Thu Tam

Nguyen Thi Thu Tam

8,199,844

4,488,614

2,857,510

2,554,320

222,058

214,058

113,722

167,176

120,864

2.54%

1.39%

0.88%

0.81%

0.07%

0.07%

0.04%

0.05%

0.04%

  8,299,844 

  4,488,614 

  2,857,510 

  2,000,000 

  214,058 

  194,058 

  113,722 

  137,176 

91,444

2.57%

1.39%

0.88%

0.63%

0.07%

0.06%

0.04%

0.04%

0.03%

Buy

Sell

Sell

Sell

Sell

Sell

Sister

Sister

I

1

II

1

III

1

IV

1

V

1

2

VI

1

VII

1

VIII

1
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1. TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS / RELATED PARTIES (CONT.)

No. Transactions
Relationship to
internal shareholders

Opening owned shares Closing owned shares Reason for increase / decrease
(buy, sell, transfer, bonus …)No. of shares Percentage No. of shares Percentage

IX

1

X

1

XI

1

XII

1

XIII

1

XIV

1

XV

1

XVI

1

XVII

1

XVIII

1

XIX

1

Tran Huy Thanh Dai

Tran Huy Thanh Dai

Tran Huy Dong

Tran Huy Dong

Phan Thi Thu Hien

Phan Thi Thu Hien

Nguyen Xuan Doai

Nguyen Xuan Doai

Nguyen Thi Thu Huong

Nguyen Thi Thu Huong

Dang Minh Luom

Dang Minh Luom

CDH Electric Bee Limited

CDH Electric Bee Limited

MEKONG ENTERPRISE FUND II, LTD

MEKONG ENTERPRISE FUND II, LTD

NTASIAN DISCOVERY MASTER FUND

NTASIAN DISCOVERY MASTER FUND

Robert Alan Willett

Robert Alan Willett

PYN ELITE FUND

PYN ELITE FUND

Brother

Brother

Wife

Wife

Wife

37,314

32,049

2,199,890

1,829,264

1,598,366

597,968

1,239,624

5,000,000

11,952,500

2,415,106

14,335,036

0.01%

0.01%

0.68%

0.57%

0.49%

0.19%

0.40%

1.55%

3.70%

0.75%

4.44%

  27,314 

  22,049 

  2,199,890 

  1,829,264 

  1,598,366 

  597,968 

  -   

  -   

  11,952,500 

  2,000,106 

  14,335,036 

0.01%

0.01%

0.68%

0.57%

0.49%

0.19%

0.00%

0.00%

3.70%

0.62%

4.44%

Sell

Sell

Sell

Sell

Sell
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TRANSACTIONS,
REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS (CONT.)
2. THE REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the members of BOD and BOS in 2018:

Non-executive Board
members

Remuneration approved by General
Meeting of Shareholders 2018

Actual remuneration paid

VND 2,820,000,000 VND 2,308,000,000

VND 0 VND 0Members of BOS
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TRANSACTIONS,
REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS (CONT.)
3. CHANGE OF SHAREHOLDERS' OWNERSHIP

No. Shareholders No. of shares Proportion of ownership (%) No. of shareholders

Shareholder structure

Institutions Individuals

Founders

Domestic

Foreign

Investment funds before listing

Domestic

Foreign

Big Shareholders (over 5%  ownership) after listing

Domestic

Foreign

MWG’s Managers and Employees

Domestic

Foreign

Other Shareholders

Domestic

Foreign

Treasury Shares

TOTAL

  21,435,819 

  21,435,819 

 - 

 90,151,445

90,151,445

-

  58,815,943

  58,815,943

  272,723,686 

  55,410,561 

  217,313,125

369,285

443,496,178 

4.83

4.83

-

 20.33 

20.33

-

13.26

13.26

61.49

12.49

49.00

0.08

100

4

4

 - 

 - 

3,765

7,544

7,386

158

207

82

125

4

4

3,765

7,337

7,304

33

1

2

3

4

5

6
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GENERAL INFOMATION

THE COMPANY

Mobile World Investment Corporation (“the Company”) is a share-
holding company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of 
Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC”) 
No. 0306731335 issued by the Department of Planning and Invest-
ment (the “DPI”) of Binh Duong Province on 16 January 2009, as 
amended.

The Company’s head office is located at No. 222, Yersin Street, Phu 
Cuong Ward, Thu Dau Mot Town, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam and 
operating office is located at MWG Tower, Lot T2-1.2, D1 Street, 
Saigon Hi-tech Park, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has four (4) direct subsidiar-
ies, one (1) indirect subsidiary and one (1) associate.

The current principal activities of the Group are trading, providing 
repair and maintenance services of phones, information technology 
equipment and accessories, cameras, digital equipment, electronic 
equipment; household appliances and related accessories; and 
retailing at the Group’s chain of stores including foods, beverages, 
products from meats, seafood, vegetables.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock 
Exchange with symbol “MWG” in accordance with the Decision No. 
253/QD-SGDHCM issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange on 
7 July 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Nguyen Duc Tai
Mr Tran Le Quan
Mr Dieu Chinh Hai Trieu
Mr Chris Freund
Mr Thomas Lanyi
Mr Tran Kinh Doanh
Mr Robert Willet
Mr Dang Minh Luom

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

resigned on 12 March 2018

appointed on 16 March 2018
resigned on 12 March 2018

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Tran Huy Thanh Tung
Mr Hoang Huu Hung
Ms Do Thi Loan
Ms Nguyen Khanh Van

Mr Nguyen Duc Tai
Mr Pham Van Trong
Mr Vu Dang Linh

General Director
Technology Director
Finance Director

Head
Member
Member
Member

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

MANAGEMENT
Members of the Management during the year and at the date of this report are:

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this 
report is Mr Nguyen Duc Tai.

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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REPORT OF
MANAGERMENT
Management of Mobile World Investment Corporation (“the Company”) is 
pleased to present its report and the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31  
December 2018.

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of 
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the consolidated finan-
cial position of the Group and of the consolidated results of its operations 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated 
financial statements, management is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject 
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated 
financial statements; and

- prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis 
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue its 
business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are 
kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group and to ensure that the accounting records 
comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps 

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidat-
ed financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of the consol-
idated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnam-
ese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial state-
ments.

For and on behalf of management:

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in 
preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tai
General Director

Binh Duong Provincce, Vietnam

19 February 2019  

34
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To: The Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Mobile World Investment Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mobile 
World Investment Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as 
prepared on 19 February 2019 and set out on pages 5 to 36, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income 
statement and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and the 
notes thereto. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting 
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory require-
ments relevant to preparation and presentation of consolidated financial 
statements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnam-
ese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Group's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
Reference: 61110221/19356378-HN

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all 
material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 
December 2018, and of the consolidated results of its operations and its consoli-
dated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Account-
ing Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory 
requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

Ernst & Young Vietnam limited 
28th Floor, Bitexco Financial Tower
2 Hai Trieu Street, District 1
Ho Chi Minh City, S.R of Vietnam

Tel: +84 8 3824 5252
Fax: +84 8 3824 5250
ey.com

Dang Minh Tai
Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 2815-2019-004-1

Ernest Yoong Chin Kang
Deputy General Director
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 1891-2018-004-1
Ho Chi Minh City,  Vietnam

19 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

-

-

Code Code

100

110

111

A. CURRENT ASSETS 

I. Cash and cash equivalents

1. Cash

5

23,371,994,756,394

3,749,550,258,212

18,862,861,306,281

3,363,717,276,954 2,189,863,295,952

112 2. Cash equivalents 385,832,981,258 1,221,120,055,441

123 1. Held-to-maturity investments 50,922,451,739 -

131 1. Short-term trade receivables 369,573,657,457 1,431,776,840,141

3,410,983,351,393

120 II. Short-term investments 6

10

50,922,451,739 -

130 III. Current accounts receivable

7

8132 2. Short-term advances to suppliers 21,007,291,749 117,942,038,760

141 1. Inventories 17,821,137,643,753 12,309,955,461,929

149 2. Provision for obsolete inventories (375,132,344,722) (259,792,810,947)

9136 4. Other short-term receivables 1,151,948,786,867 1,131,428,936,653

135 3. Short-term loan receivables - 84,700,000,000

1,542,529,736,073 2,765,847,815,554

140 IV. Inventories 17,446,005,298,981 12,050,162,650,982

11151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 283,034,716,902 338,169,643,457

152 2. Value-added tax deductible 298,109,345,560 297,598,157,759

153 3. Tax and other receivables
     from the State 1,842,948,927 99,687,136

150 V. Other current assets 582,987,011,389 635,867,488,352

Assets AssetsNotes NotesEnding balance Ending balanceBeginning balance Beginning balance

200

210

216

B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

I. Long-term receivable

1. Other long-term receivables

4,750,536,730,462

313,775,645,332 

3,959,802,908,939

313,775,645,332 242,115,970,118

242,115,970,118

220 II. Fixed assets 3,333,147,659,602 3,463,657,994,935

240 III. Long-term assets in progress 256,831,997,207 35,457,406,785

12

221 1. Tangible fixed assets 3,304,923,529,470 3,435,848,333,29913

242 1. Construction in progress 256,831,997,207 35,457,406,78515

227 2. Intangible assets 28,224,130,132 27,809,661,63614

222 Cost 5,788,326,331,676 4,832,699,906,378

223 Accumulated depreciation (2,483,402,802,206) (1,396,851,573,079)

228 Cost 33,838,423,144 32,779,467,144

250 IV. Long-term investment 59,937,763,115

252 1. Investment in an associate 59,937,763,11517

260 V. Other long-term assets 786,843,665,206 218,571,537,101

270 TOTAL ASSETS 28,122,531,486,856 22,822,664,215,220

261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 84,768,088,475 97,701,063,49316

262 2. Deferred tax assets 149,548,727,665 120,870,473,60830.3

269 3. Goodwill 552,526,849,066 -18

229 Accumulated amortisation (5,614,293,012) (4,969,805,508)

as at 31 December 2018
B01-DN/HN
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Code CodeAssets AssetsNotes NotesBeginning balance Beginning balance

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 B01-DN/HN

300

310

311

C. LIABILITIES

I. Current liabilities

1. Short-term trade payables

19,139,496,155,514

17,929,433,003,626

16,913,747,880,005

8,244,614,243,810 7,373,229,669,492

312 2. Short-term advances from customers 38,061,594,053 22,475,498,439

313 3. Statutory obligations  217,699,643,883 137,421,612,285

15,713,814,885,175

330 II. Non-current liabilities 1,210,063,151,888 1,199,932,994,830

19

415 4. Treasury shares (808,864,500) (79,164,500)24.1

417 5. Foreign exchange differences reserve 446,572,898 (86,063,365)24.1

421 6. Undistributed earnings 3,989,603,910,055 2,698,572,748,45924.1

429 7. Non-controlling interests 6,249,443,319 2,776,252,251

421a - Undistributed earnings 
of prior year 1,138,290,716,709             461,763,398,338 

421b - Undistributed earnings
of current year 2,851,313,193,346           2,236,809,350,121 

338 1. Long-term loan 1,208,167,140,389 1,199,932,994,83023

400 D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 8,983,035,331,342 5,908,916,335,215

410 I. Capital 8,983,035,331,342 5,908,916,335,215

414 3. Other capital 1,130,494,084 1,130,494,08424.1

411 1. Share capital 4,434,961,780,000 3,169,884,370,00024.1

412 2. Share premium 551,451,995,486 36,717,698,28624.1

411a Shares with voting rights 4,434,961,780,000 3,169,884,370,000

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 28,122,531,486,856 22,822,664,215,220

341 2. Deferred tax liabilities 1,896,011,499 -30.3

20

21

314 4. Payables to employees 149,774,991,802 133,725,111,318

315 5. Short-term accrued expenses 2,173,064,879,414 1,585,372,350,657

22319 6. Other short-term payables 1,208.214,263,090 807,310,112,729

23320 7. Short-term loans 5,836,454,637,089 5,603,505,990,526

321 8. Short-term provision 56,568,632,732 45,824,539,729

322 9. Bonus and welfare fund 4,980,117.753 4,950,000,000

Ly Tran Kim Ngan
Preparer
19 February 2019

Vu Dang Linh
Finance Director

Nguyen Duc Tai
General Director

Ending balance Ending balance
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INCOME STATEMENT

Code

01 1. Revenue from sale of goods and
rendering of services 87,738,378,978,63625.1 67,698,540,686,709

02 2. Deductions (1,222,091,976,137)25.1
30.1

31

(1,358,736,494,531)

10 3. Net revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of services 86,516,287,002,49925.1

25.2

66,339,804,192,178

11 4. Cost of goods sold and
services rendered (71,224,159,239,435)29 (55,198,024,925,235)

20 5. Gross profit from sale of goods
and rendering of services 15,292,127,763,064 11,141,779,266,943

21 6. Finance income 342,083,875,229 250,509,808,127

2622 7. Finance expenses (436,573,150,236) (234,286,596,275)

1724 8. Share of loss of the associate (2,100,986,885) -

27, 2925 9. Selling expenses (9,659,741,188,756) (7,017,061,321,366)

28, 2926 10. General and administrative
expenses (1,761,613,900,080) (1,345,497,381,559)

31 12. Other income 33,233,337,382 17,684,643,400

32 13. Other expenses (21,097,180,800) (3,816,386,624)

40 14. Other profit 12,136,156,582 13,868,256,776

50 15. Accounting profit before tax 3,786,318,568,918 2,809,312,032,646

51 16. Current corporate income
tax expense (933,836,738,446) (639,743,605,453)

30.352 17. Deferred tax income 27,827,229,661 37,328,692,156

60 18. Net profit after tax 2,880,309,060,133 2,206,897,119,349

61 19. Net profit after tax attributable
to shareholders of the parent 2,878,724,130,907 2,205,679,630,420

70 20. Basic earnings per share 6,689 5,311

3171 21. Diluted earnings per share 6,689 5,311

62
20. Net profit after tax attributable
to non-controlling interests

1,584,929,226 1,217,488,929

30 11. Operating profit 3,774,182,412,336 2,795,443,775,870

23 In which: Interest expense (436,416,577,674) (233,202,340,492)

Items Note Current year Previous year

Ly Tran Kim Ngan Vu Dang Linh Nguyen Duc Tai

for the year ended 31 December 2018 B02-DN/HN

VND
Code Items Note Current year Previous year

VND

Preparer
19 February 2019

Finance Director General Director
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30 Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,344,394,040,332) (2,120,214,986,482)

21

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

(1,495,931,919,038) (2,065,069,567,410)Purchase and construction
of fixed assets

22 1,339,965,525 180,000,000Proceeds from disposals of 
fixed assets

23 (85,922,451,739) (210,280,000,000)Loans to other entities and
term deposits

25 (828,166,470,141)
-

Payments for investments in otherentities
(net of cash hold by entity being acquired)

24 - 125,580,000,000Collections from borrowers

27 64,286,835,061 29,374,580,928Interest received

01

02

Accounting profit before tax

I. CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3,786,318,568,918

13
14
18

26

2,809,312,032,646

08 Operating profit before changes 
in working capital 5,486,723,118,247 3,823,772,147,620

03 Provisions 126,083,626,828 125,969,042,598

05 Profits from investing activities (84,857,279,584) (35,336,741,307)

09 Decrease (increase) in receivables 1,246,646,823,981 (1,322,949,244,960)

10 Increase in inventories (4,672,944,194,460) (2,796,297,892,101)

11 Increase in payables 1,331,042,865,781  3,970,336,761,157

12 (Decrease) increase in prepaid expenses 126,753,313,780 (96,805,747,662)

06 Interest expense 436,416,577,674 233,202,340,492

04
Foreign exchange (gains) losses
arisen from revaluation of monetary
accounts denominated in foreign currency

(107,059,306) 911,764,559

1,222,868,683,717 689,713,708,632

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 
of fixed assets (including
amortisation of goodwill)

20

20 Net cash flows from operating activities 2,261,134,531,069 2,663,663,956,855

14 Interest paid (427,564,376,510) (223,723,867,627)

15 Corporate income tax paid (829,523,019,750) (690,668,199,572)

B03-DN/HN

CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Code Items Note Current year Previous year
VND

Code Items Note Current year Previous year
VND
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40 Net cash flows from
financing activities

421,719,356,776 1,870,536,552,446

III. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 703,840,247,200 92,226,480,000

1,514,820,000 240,000,000

Issuance of new shares

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interest

32 (729,700,000) -Shares repurchased

33 31,893,805,156,672 29,465,789,268,692Drawdown of borrowings

34 (31,690,848,740,269) (27,456,000,269,116)Repayment of borrowings

36 (485,862,426,827) (231,718,927,130)Dividends paid

50
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 338,459,847,513 2,413,985,522,819

60 Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 3,410,983,351,393 996,983,462,012

70 Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 3,749,550,258,212 3,410,983,351,393

61 Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 107,059,306 14,366,562

CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 B03-DN/HN

Code Items Note Current year Previous year
VND

Code Items Note Current year Previous year
VND

Ly Tran Kim Ngan Vu Dang Linh Nguyen Duc Tai
Preparer
19 February 2019

Finance Director General Director
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mobile World Investment Corporation (“the Company”) is a share-
holding company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of 
Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC”) 
No. 0306731335 issued by the Department of Planning and Invest-
ment (the “DPI”) of Binh Duong Province on 16 January 2009, as 
amended.

The Company’s head office is located at No. 222, Yersin Street, Phu 
Cuong Ward, Thu Dau Mot Town, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam and 
operating office is located at MWG Tower, Lot T2-1.2, D1 Street, 
Saigon Hi-tech Park, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam. 

The current principal activities of the Group are trading, providing 
repair and maintenance services of phones, information technology 
equipment and accessories, cameras, digital equipment, electronic 
equipment; household appliances and related accessories; and 
retailing at the Group’s chain of stores including foods, beverages, 
products from meats, seafood, vegetables.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock 
Exchange with symbol “MWG” in accordance with the Decision No. 
253/QD-SGDHCM issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange 
on 7 July 2014. 

The number of the Group’s employees as at 31 December 2018 was 
40,756 (31 December 2017: 36,806).

Corporate structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has five (5) subsidiaries. 
Details are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name of subsidiary

Ownership (%)

Ending
balance

Beginning
balanceLocation Business

Operating
status

(1) The Gioi Di Dong
Joint Stock Company

99,95 99,95OperatingHo Chi Minh City,
Vietnam

Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam

Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam

Trading of 
electronic 
equipment

(2) Bach Hoa Xanh
Trading Joint Stock
Company

99,95 99,95OperatingTrading of 
food

(3) Tran Anh Digital
World Joint Stock
Company

99,33 -OperatingHanoi City,
Vietnam

Trading of 
electronic 
equipment

(4) The Gioi Di Dong
Information Technology
Limited Company

100 100Pre-
operating

Information 
technology

(5) MWG (Cambodia)
Co., Ltd

99,95 99,95OperatingPhnom Penh, 
Campuchia

Trading of 
electronic 
equipment

as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended B09-DN/HN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended B09-DN/HN

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Accounting standards and system
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(the “Group”), expressed in Vietnam dong (“VND”), are prepared in accor-
dance with Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

- Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the 
Issuance and Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards 
(Series 1);
- Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the 
Issuance and Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards 
(Series 2); 
- Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the 
Issuance and Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards 
(Series 3); and
- Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the 
Issuance and Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards 
(Series 4); and
- Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the 
Issuance and Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards 
(Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, includ-
ing their utilisation are not designed for those who are not informed about 
Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures and practices and further-
more are not intended to present the financial position and results of opera-
tions and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practic-
es generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

2.2 Applied accounting documentation system
The Group’s applied accounting documentation system is the Journal 
Voucher system.
2.3 Fiscal year
The Group’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its consolidated 
financial statements starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December. 
2.4 Accounting currency
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also 
the Group’s accounting currency. 
2.5 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements 
of the parent Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 
2018. 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the 
date on which the Group obtains control, and continued to be consolidated 
until the date that such control ceases. 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same report-
ing year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. 
All intra-company balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains or 
losses result from intra-company transactions are eliminated in full. 
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net 
assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the consoli-
dated income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance 
sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.
Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of 
control, is recorded in retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended B09-DN/HN

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term, 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignifi-
cant risk of change in value.

3.2 Receivables

Receivables are presented in the consolidated financial statements at the carrying 
amounts due from customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts.

The provision for doubtful debts represents amounts of outstanding receivables at 
the balance sheet date which are doubtful of being recovered. Increases and decreas-
es to the provision balance are recorded as general and administrative expense in the 
consolidated income statement.

3.3 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost which comprises all costs of purchase and 
other direct costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condi-
tion, and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.

The perpetual method is used to record inventories, which are valued as follows.

Mobile phones and laptops

Digital and
electronic equipment

- Actual cost on a specific identification basis

- Actual cost on a specific identification basis

Accessories - Actual cost on a weighted average basis

Household appliances - Actual cost on a weighted average basis

Foods, beverages - Actual cost on a weighted average basis

Others - Actual cost on a weighted average basis

Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventories provision is created for the estimated loss arising due 
to the impairment of value (through diminution, damage, obsoles-
cence, etc.) of inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate 
evidence of impairment available at the balance sheet date.  

Increases and decreases to the provision balance are recorded into 
the cost of goods sold account in the consolidated income statement.

3.4 Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid 
expenses on the consolidated balance sheet and amortised over the 
year for which the amounts are paid or the year in which economic 
benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.

The following types of expenses are recorded as long-term prepaid 
expense and are amortised to the consolidated income statement:

- Prepaid rental; and

- Tools and supplies;
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3.5 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The 
cost of a business combination is measured as the fair value of assets 
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the 
date of exchange plus any costs directly attributable to the business combi-
nation. Identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed 
in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the date of 
business combination.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost 
being the excess of the cost the business combination over the Group’s 
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities. If the cost of a business combination is less than 
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. After initial 
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisa-
tion. Goodwill is amortised over ten-year (10) period on a straight-line basis. 
The parent company conducts the periodical review for impairment of 
goodwill of investment in subsidiaries. If there are indicators of impairment 
loss incurred is higher than the yearly allocated amount of goodwill on the 
straight-line basis, the higher amount will be recorded in the consolidated 
income statement.

When the Company acquires the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, 
the difference between the cost of acquisition and the carrying amount of 
the non-controlling interest is reflected as undistributed earnings in the 
consolidated balance sheet.

3.6 Investments

Investment in an associate

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity 
method of accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Group has 
significant influence that is neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The 
Group generally deems they have significant influence if they have over 
20% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated 
balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share 
of net assets of the associates. Goodwill arising on acquisition of the 
associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Goodwill 
is not amortised and subject to annual review for impairment. The 
consolidated income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition 
results of operation of the associate.

The share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) of the associates is presented 
on face of the consolidated income statement and its share of post-ac-
quisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumula-
tive post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying 
amount of the investment. Dividend/profit sharing received or receivable 
from associates reduces the carrying amount of the investment. 

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same 
reporting period and use the same accounting policies as the Group. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies 
in line with those of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended B09-DN/HN

3.7 3.7 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any 
directly attributable costs of bringing the tangible fixed asset to working 
condition for its intended use. 

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the 
carrying amount of the assets and expenditures for maintenance and 
repairs are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting 
from their disposal (the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.

3.8  3.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any direct-
ly attributable costs of preparing the intangible fixed asset for its intended 
use. 

Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying 
amount of the assets and other expenditures are charged to the consolidat-
ed income statement as incurred.  

When intangible assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from 
their disposal (the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are recorded as intangible assets when the Company has 
the land use rights certificates. The costs of land use rights comprise all 

directly attributable costs of bringing the land to the condition available for 
use and is not amortised as having indefinite useful life.

3.9 3.9 Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortisation of intangible assets 
are calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each 
asset as follows:

Building and structures  5 years

Computer software  4 years

Means of transportation  6 years

Office equipment  3 - 8 years

Goodwill   10 years

Land use rights   indefinite useful life

3.10 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds and are recorded as expense in the 
consolidated income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

3.11 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future 
for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.
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3.12 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s reporting currency of VND 
are recorded at the actual transaction exchange rates at transaction dates 
which are determined as follows:
- Transaction resulting in receivables are recorded at the buying exchange 
rates of the commercial banks designated for collection;
- Transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange 
rates of the commercial banks designated for payment;
- Payments for assets or expenses without liabilities initially being 
recognised is recorded at the buying exchange rates of the commercial 
banks that process these payments.
At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the actual transaction exchange rates at the balance sheet 
dates which are determined as follows:
- Monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial 
bank where the Group conducts transactions regularly;
- Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commer-
cial bank where the Group conducts transactions regularly.
All foreign exchange differences incurred during the year and arisen from the 
translation of monetary accounts denominated in foreign currency at balance 
sheet date are taken to the consolidated income statement. 
3.13 Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are 
recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss upon purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own 
equity instruments.
3.14 Appropriation of net profits
Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to shareholders after approv-

al in the annual general meeting, and after making appropriation to reserve 
funds in accordance with the Company’s Charter and Vietnam’s regulatory 
requirements.
The Company maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriat-
ed from the Company’s net profit as proposed by the Board of Directors and 
subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting.
Bonus and welfare fund
This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encourag-
ing, common benefits and improvement of the employees’ benefits, and 
presented as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet.
3.15 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales return. The following 
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually upon the delivery of the 
goods.
Rendering of services
Revenues are recognized upon the completion of the services provided.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues unless collectability is in 
doubt.
Dividends
Income is recognised when the Group’s entitlement as an investor to 
receive the dividend is established.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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3.16 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating lease agreements are charged to the consoli-
dated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

3.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amount is computed by dividing net profit for the 
year attributable to ordinary shareholders, after appropriation for bonus and 
welfare fund, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstand-
ing during the year, where applicable.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit 
after tax attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after adjust-
ing for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on 
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.18 Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior year are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted as at the balance sheet date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income state-
ment, except when it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which 
case the current income tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right for the Group to offset current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and when the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and 
liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences 
at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, 
carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax 
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at 
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is 
settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the balance 
sheet date. 

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, 
except when it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the 
deferred tax is also dealt with in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforce-
able right for the Group to offset current tax assets against current tax liabili-
ties and when they relate to income taxes levied on the same taxable entity by 
the same taxation authority or when the Group intends either settle current 
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously, in each future year in which significant amounts of 
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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3.19 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the group if one party has the 
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions, or when the group 
and other party are under common control or under common significant 
influence. Related parties can be enterprise or individual, including close 
members of the family of any such individual.

3.20 Segment information

A segment is a component determined separately by the Group which is 
engaged in providing products or related services (business segment), or 
providing products or services in a particular economic environment (geo-
graphical segment), that is subject to risks and returns that are different 
from those of other segments. As the Group’s revenue and profit are derived 
mainly from trading, providing repair and maintenance services of phones, 
information technology equipment, cameras, digital equipment, electronic 
equipment; household appliances and related accessories business in 
Vietnam while other sources of revenue are not material as a whole, 
management accordingly believed that the Group operates in a sole 
business segment of trading, providing repair and maintenance services of 
phones, information technology equipment, cameras, digital equipment, 
electronic equipment; household appliances and related accessories and 
material geographical segment of the Company is in Vietnam.

4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

On 5 January 2018, the Company acquired 23,608,706 shares, equivalent to 
95.15% equity interest in Tran Anh Digital World Joint Stock Company 
(“TAG”) from its existing shareholders for a consideration of VND 
825,179,755,154. Accordingly, TAG became the Company’s subsidiary since 
that date.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of TAG as at the date 
of acquisition were follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

Items Fair value recognised on acquisition
VND

55,270,830,566

64,091,855,378
838,237,987,364

63,062,287,272
54,099,652,231

110,412,301,088
43,432,795,149

887,144,337,341
118,386,375,724

1,044,987,103
222,032,008,880

(10,770,974,911)
613,918,721,185
825,179,755,154

Assets
Cash
Current account receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Long-term receivables
Fixed assets
Other non-current assets

Liabilities
Current account payables
Loans
Deferred tax liabilities
Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Non-controlling interest
Goodwill (Note 18)
Purchase consideration transferred
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Ending balance Beginning balance
VND

1,092,388,965,1141,475,214,891,085

1,056,051,622,5991,787.504,805,657

41,422,708,239100,997,580,212

3,410,983,351,3933,749,550,258,212

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSFrom 12 January 2018 to 30 March 2018, the Company acquired additional 
1,001,635 shares, equivalent to 4.04% equity interest in TAG from non-con-
trolling shareholders for a consideration of VND 35,117,847,646. Accord-
ingly, the Company increased its ownership in TAG from 95.15% to 99.19%. 
The difference between a consideration and carrying value of equity inter-
est in TAG at the transaction date is VND 26,626,775,847 recognised as a 
deduction in undistributed earnings in the Group’s consolidated balance 
sheet
From 2 April 2018 to 5 May 2018, the Company acquired 18,302 shares, 
equivalent to 0.09% of ownership in TAG from non-controlling sharehold-
ers. Accordingly, the Company increased its ownership in TAG from 99.19% 
to 99.27%. The difference between a consideration and the carrying value 
of equity interest in TAG at the transaction date is VND 463,254,186 
recognised as a deduction in undistributed earnings in the Group’s consoli-
dated balance sheet.
On 19 July 2018, TAG repurchased 14,300 shares from non-controlling 
shareholders. Accordingly, the Company increased its ownership in TAG 
from 99.27% to 99.33%. The difference between a consideration and the 
carrying value of equity interest in TAG at the transaction date is VND 
320,907,528 recognised as a deduction in undistributed earnings in the 
Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

Cash at banks amounting to VND 52,507,957,372 were pledged as collater-
al for long-term loans obtained from commercial bank (Note 23.2).
(*) Cash equivalents represent term deposits with maturity terms of less 
than three (3) months and earn interest at the rate ranging from 4% to 5.5% 
per annum.

6. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT
Held-to-maturity investment represents term deposits with maturity terms 
from three (3) to less than one (1) year and earns interest at the rate ranging 
from 7% to 7.6% per annum.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

Cash on hand

Cash in banks

Cash in transit  

Cash equivalents (*)

TOTAL
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Trade receivables from other customers

Ending balance Beginning balance Ending balance Beginning balance

Ending balance Beginning balance

VND

174,547,697,188142,746,694,060 

131,990,737,564121,475,120,993 

517,724,233,322369,573,657,457

- Others

TOTAL

211,185,798,570105,351,842,404

1,431,776,840,141369,573,657,457

- Home Credit Vietnam Finance 
Company Limited

- Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock
Commercial Bank

914,052,606,819-- Trade receivables from related
parties (Note 32)

7. SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES
VND

9. OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Due from other suppliers (i) 1,063,322,385,5031,090,399,532,158

Receivables from employees 10,142,324,91813,260,843,199

Others 52,448,843,06548,288,411,510

TOTAL 1,131,428,936,6531,151,948,786,867

Due from related parties (Note 32) 5,515,383,167-

- Sony Electronics Vietnam
Company Limited 165,911,189,875229,314,874,870 

- Samsung Electronics Viet Nam
Thai Nguyen Company Limited 199,279,645,229210,678,174,261 

- Samsung Electronic HCMC CE
Complex Limited 148,882,415,17299,270,165,996

- Panasonic Vietnam
Company Limited 105,853,512,07389,527,581,160

- Apple South Asia Pte Ltd 111,229,422,68684,205,741,617

- Others 332,166,200,468377,402,994,254

(i) (i) Receivables from suppliers mainly comprise trade discounts, early 
payment discounts and price protection.

Advances to other suppliers 83,540,982,67219,882,739,814

Advances to a related party
(Note 32) 34,401,056,0881,124,551,935

TOTAL 117,942,038,76021,007,291,749

VND
8. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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Ending balance Beginning balance

Electronic equipment

VND

5,227,298,028,6918,093,520,536,583  

Mobile phones 4,128,119,091,4345,575,201,490,528 

Home appliances 1,228,030,161,5031,854,149,173,341 

Accessories 761,201,669,164851,177,889,554 

Laptop 283,325,343,909331,470,400,564 

Tablets 194,501,360,792230,987,789,548 

Scratch card 104,188,200,292140,104,491,868 

Goods in transit 16,338,976,1309,011,116,270 

Grocery merchandise 232,465,986,069619,216,942,867 

Others   134,486,643,945 116,297,812,630

TOTAL 12,309,955,461,92917,821,137,643,753 

Provision for obsolete inventories (259,792,810,947)(375,132,344,772) 

NET 12,050,162,650,98217,446,005,298,981 

10. INVENTORIES

Current year Previous year
VND

Beginning balance (142,925,820,050)(259,792,810,947) 

Add: Provision created during the year (259,792,810,947)(375,132,344,772) 

Ending balance (259,792,810,947)(375,132,344,772) 

Less: Utilisation and reversal of 
rovision during the year 142,925,820,050259,792,810,947 

Movements of provision for obsolete inventories:

11. SHORT-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term prepaid expenses mainly represent rental and set up expens-
es of new offices and distribution centres.

12. OTHER LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

Other long-term receivables mainly represent long-term rental deposits 
for offices, retail stores and distribution centres.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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Buildings and structures Means of transportation Office equipment Total

VND

4,120,952,100,029

669,501,215,998

77,810,643,621

56,017,785,332 
(151,194,300,403)

4,773,087,444,577

232,985,606,287

(1,147,718,234,451)
(957,455,729,174) 

 (30,048,781,285)
149,473,302,533 

(1,985,749,442,377) 

2,973,233,865,578
2,787,338,002,200

49,925,244,538 

24,102,038,444

-
-

157,628,559,882 

10,161,763,435

(32,882,838,350)
(19,979,194,934)

 (10,151,788,215)
-

(63,013,821,499)

50,718,438,550
94,614,738,383 

145,390,938.834

86,623,205,710

-
(2,550,346,776)

857,610,327,217

156,831,666,330

(216,250,500,278)
(183,397,399,986)
 (37,923,017,187)

2,931,379,121
(434,639,538,330)

411,896,029,171
422,970,788,887 

864,817,399,370

188,535,887,775

56,017,785,332 
(153,744,647,179)

5,788,326,331,676

399,979,036,052

(1,396,851,573,079)
(1,160,832,324,094)

 (78,123,586,687)
152,404,681,654

(2,483,402,802,206)

3,435,848,333,299
3,304,923,529,470

83,601,276,900 628,146,529,449 4,832,699,906,378

13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost:

Beginning balance

New purchases

Increase due to acquisition of subsidiary

Transfer from construction in progress
Disposals

Ending balance

Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance
Depreciation for the year
Increase due to acquisition of subsidiary
Disposals
Ending balance

Net carrying amount:

Beginning balance 
Ending balance

In which:
- Fully depreciated

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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VND

VND

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Land use rights Computer software Total

Beginning balanceEnding balance

15,851,273,206247,139,389,994

25,998,878,500

- 1,058,956,000 1,058,956,000

6,780,588,644 32,779,467,144

Cost:

Accumulated amortisation:

Net carrying amount:

Beginning balance

New purchases

25,998,878,500 7,839,544,644 33,838,423,144Ending balance

- (4,969,805,508) (4,969,805,508)Beginning balance

- (644,487,504) (644,487,504)Amortisation for the year

- (5,614,293,012) (5,614,293,012) Ending balance

25,998,878,500 1,810,783,136 27,809,661,636Beginning balance

25,998,878,500 2,225,251,632 28,224,130,132 Ending balance

Office construction costs

TOTAL

19,606,133,5799,692,607,213

35,457,406,785256,831,997,207

Construction costs for new stores
and distribution centres

VND
17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

An Khang Retail Joint Stock Company

-
62,038,750,000
62,038,750,000

-
(2,100,986,885)
(2,100,986,885)

-
59,937,763,115

Cost of investment:
Beginning balance
Increase for the year
Ending balance

Accumulated share in post-acquisition loss of the associate:
Beginning balance
Share in post-acquisition loss of the associate for the year
Ending balance
Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance
Ending balance

VND16. LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

Beginning balanceEnding balance

25,134,173,95147,023,024,097New stores’ layout

29,536,921,27011,803,940,130Tools and supplies

43,029,968,27225,941,124,248Stores rental

97,701,063,49384,768,088,475TOTAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended



54

An
nu

al 
Re

po
rt 2

01
8

B09-DN/HN

An Khang Retail Joint Stock Company ("An Khang") is a joint stock company 
established in accordance with the ERC No. 0314587300 issued by the DPI of 
Ho Chi Minh City on 21 August 2017, and as amended. An Khang’s registered 
office is located at No. 128, Tran Quang Khai Street, Tan Dinh Ward, District 1, 
Vietnam. The current principal activities of An Khang are to trade medicines and 
consumers goods.

During the year, the Company acquired 634,100 shares, equivalent to 49% of 
equity interest in An Khang, for a total consideration of VND 62,038,750,000.

VND20. STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS

Ending balance
Decrease during 

the year
Increase during 

the yearBeginning balance

191,092,523,932 (829,523,019,750) 933,836,738,446 86,778,805,236
Corporate
income tax 

1,866,631,646(239,758,934,396)193,119,833,82148,505,732,221Personal
income tax

21,588,461,648(11,425,667,779,150)11,447,256,240,798-Value-added
tax

3,152,026,657(22,430,207,459)23,445,159,2882,137,074,828Others

217,699,643,883(12,517,379,940,755)12,597,657,972,353137,421,612,285TOTAL

VND19. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

Ending balance Beginning balance

7,312,177,575,8938,244,614,243,810Payables due to other suppliers

61,052,093,599-
Payable due to a related party
(Note 32)

7,373,229,669,4928,244,614,243,810TOTLA

971,313,066,1621,238,909,187,337- Sony Electronics Vietnam Co., Ltd

1,057,271,479,660599,842,710,544- Apple Vietnam Company Limited

5,073,090,527,3905,377,360,660,201- Others

210,502,502,6811,028,501,685,728- Samsung Electronics
Viet Nam Thai Nguyen

VND18. GOODWILL

Amount

-

Cost:

Beginning balance

613,918,721,185

613,918,721,185

-(61,391,872,119)

(61,391,872,119)

-
552,526,849,066

Increase due to acquisition of subsidiary (Note 4)

Ending balance

Accumulated amortisation:
Beginning balance

Amortisation for the year

Ending balance

Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance
Ending balance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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VND21. SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Ending balance Beginning balance

1,237,748,686,4311,802,106,384,970Bonus to employees

141,659,122,724151,545,159,391Interest supporting expense

60,471,906,14467,622,692,702Payables to employees

19,808,721,89439,280,477,170Utilities

19,422,412,85529,483,125,592Transportation expenses

26,148,557,81321,232,132,110Repairing warranty service costs

33,664,343,63914,649,245,341Marketing expenses

46,448,599,15747,145,662,138Others

1,585,372,350,6572,173,064,879,414TOTAL

VND22. OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES

Ending balance Beginning balance

687,624,275,3061,042,059.390,385Received charges on behalf 

35,003,395,25736,449,047,741Instalment payments received
on behalf

27,241,017,38233,499,443,205 Deposits

13,374,171,80525,017,709,725Social and health insurances
and trade union fee

20,119,606,00024,736,136,521Discount vouchers

23,947,646,97946,452,535,513Others

807,310,112,7291,208,214,263,090TOTAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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23. LOANS

Ending balanceReclassificationDecrease in yearIncrease in year

5,528,505,990,526 31,655,968,529,964 (31,483,875,594,065) - 5,700,598,926,425

75,000,000,000 600,000,000 (204.973,146,204) 265,228,856,868 135,855,710,664

5,603,505,990,526 31,656,568,529,964 (31.688,848,740,269) 265,228,856,868 5,836,454,637,089

1,113,056,666,666 4,539,999,995 - - 1,117,596,666,661

86,876,328,164 270,923,002,432 (2,000,000,000) (265,228,856,868) 90,570,473,728

1,199,932,994,830 275,463,002,427 (2,000,000,000) (265,228,856,868) 1,208,167,140,389

6,803,438,985,356 31,932,031,532,391 (31,690,848,740,269) - 7,044,621,777,478

Beginning balance

Short-term

Long-term

TOTAL

Short-term loans from banks
(Note 23.1)

Long-term banks loans
(Note 23.2)

Domestic straight bonds
(Note 23.3)

Current portion of long-term
bank loan (Note 23.2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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23.1 Short-term loans from banks
The Group obtained these unsecured loans with floating rates to finance its working capital requirements. Details of the short-term loans from banks are as 
follows:

Lenders Ending balance
VND

Maturity date 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - Ha Noi Branch

HSBC Bank (Vietnam) Limited

Bank of Investment and Development of
Vietnam - Ho Chi Minh Branch

ANZ Bank (Vietnam) Limited - Ho Chi Minh Branch

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation – Ho Chi Minh Branch

BNP Paribas - Ho Chi Minh City Branch

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. – Ho Chi Minh Branch

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade
- Tan Binh Branch   

Standard Chartered Bank Co., Ltd

Citibank N.A - Hanoi Branch

Shinhan Bank Vietnam Ltd.

United Overseas Bank (Vietnam) Limited

Malayan Banking Berhad - Ha Noi City Branch

Malayan Banking Berhad - Ho Chi Minh City Branch

TOTAL

609,999,999,999

843,252,711,160

699,939,437,653

681,071,999,307

599,881,235,800

459,127,440,742 

383,515,118,352

361,131,332,184

300,000,000,000

222,651,619,300

209,112,973,250

104,993,831,018

81,726,226,300

80,000,000,000

64,195,001,360

5,700,598,926,425

from 4 January 2019 to 1 February 2019

from 15 January 2019 to 26 February 2019

from 7 January 2019 to 8 February 2019

from 2 February 2019 to 16 February 2019

from 4 January 2019 to 5 March 2019

from 17 January 2019 to 28 March 2019

from 2 January 2019 to 4 January 2019

28 February 2019

9 February 2019

11 February 2019

from 4 January 2019 to 12 January 2019

28 March 2019

from 22 April 2019 to 23 April 2019

12 April 2019

15 March 2019
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23.2 Long-term loan from bank
The Group obtained the loan to finance its working capital requirements. Details of the long-term loan from bank are as follows:

23.3 Domestic straight bonds
Details of domestic straight bond are as follows:

Domestic straight bonds are arranged by Standard Chartered Bank (Vietnam) Limited and guaranteed by Credit Guarantee and Investment Facility - a trust fund 
of the Asian Development Bank. The guarantee fee is charged at the rate of 1.5% per annum.

Owners Amount
VND

Maturity dateInterest rate
%/p.a

Purpose
Description of

collateral

470,000,000,000

450,000,000,000

100,000,000,000

45,000,000,000
30,000,000,000
40,000,000,000

1,117,596,666,661

(17,403,333,339)

6.55 17 November 2022 To finance its
working capital
requirements

Unsecured

Bank Ending balance
VND

Term and maturity date Interest rate Collateral

226,426,184,392

135,855,710,664

90,570,473,728

Standard Chartered Bank (Vietnam) Limited

In which:

- Current portion

- Non-current portion

From 4 August 2017 
to 4 August 2020

1-month deposit interest
rate plus 3% p.a 

Cash at bank 
(Note 5)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

Prudential Vietnam Assurance Private Ltd
Manulife (Vietnam) Limited
AIA (Vietnam) Life Insurance Company Limited
Chubb Insurance Vietnam Company Limited
Shinhan Securities (Vietnam) Limited Company
Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
Bond’s issuance expenses
TOTAL
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Beginning balance 1,539,509,270,000 36,717,698,286

36,717,698,286

1,538,148,620,000

92,226,480,000

3,169,884,370,000

3,169,884,370,000 

-

61,810,840,000

-

-

-

-

1,075,971,460,000

4,434,961,780,000 

127,295,110,000

36,717,698,286 

-

514,734,297,200

551,451,995,486 

-

-

-

-

-

(79,164,500) 

-

-

(729,700,000)

(808,864,500) 

-

-

-

(86,063,365)

532,636,263 

446,572,898 

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,698,572,748,459 

2,878,724,130,907

(27,410,937,561)

(484,310,571,750)

(1,075,971,460,000)

3,989,603,910,055

1,130,494,084 

1,130,494,084 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-- -

-

5,906,140,082,964 

2,878,724,130,907

576.545,137,200

(729,700,000)

(484,310,571,750)

127,295,110,000

532,636,263 

8,976,785,888,023

-

-

- -

-

-

-

-

(79,164,500) 2,261,763,398,339

2,205,679,630,420

(230,721,660,300)

(1,538,148,620,000)
-

-

2,698,572,748,459

1,130,494,084

-

-

-
-

-

1,130,494,084

3,839,041,696,209

2,205,679,630,420

(230,721,660,300)

-
92,226,480,000

(86,063,365)

5.906,140,082,964(79,164,500)

-

-

-

-

-

(86,063,365)

-

-

-

-

-

(86,063,365)

-

Share capital

Previous year:

Current year:

Treasury shares Other capital Total

VND

Share premium Foreign exchange
differences 

Undistributed
earnings

Net profit for the year

Dividend declared 

Bonus shares issuance 

Shares issuance under ESOP

Foreign exchange differences

Ending balance

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Net profit for the year

Issuance of shares (*)

Purchase of treasury shares

Equity transactions inside Group
with non-controlling interests
shareholders

Stock dividend (**)

Dividend declared

Foreign exchange differences 

Shares issuance under
ESOP (***)

24. OWNERS’ EQUITY
24.1 Increase and decrease in owners’ equity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
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Number of shares

316,988,437Beginning balance

24.1 Increase and decrease in owners’ equity (cont.)

(*) In accordance with the Shareholders’ Resolution No. 02/2017/DHDCD dated 22 August 2017 and the Board of Director’s Resolution No. 0112/2017/HD-
QT/NQ-TGDD dated 7 December 2017, the General Shareholder and the Board of Directors approved the issuance of 6,700,000 ordinary shares to investors in 
form of private placement. In accordance with the Board of Director’s Resolution No. 0101/2018/HDQT/NQ-TGDD dated 5 January 2018, the Board of Directors 
approved the issuance of 6,181,084 shares to investors at the price of VND 93,300 per share and the Company issued 6,181,084 ordinary shares to its investors 
on 15 January 2018. On 22 May 2018, the Company received the amended ERC issued by the DPI of Binh Duong Province for the above issuance of shares.

(**) On 23 November 2018, the Company issued 107,597,146 shares from undistributed earnings under the form of stock dividends at par value of 10,000 
VND/share to its existing shareholders. The transaction was approved under the Shareholders’ Resolution No. 01_2018/BBDHDCD/TGDD dated 16 March 2018, 
and the Board of Director’s Resolutions No. 0110/NQ/HDQT-2018 dated 8 October 2018. On 5 December 2018, the Company received the amended ERC issued 
by the DPI of Binh Duong Province for the above issuance of shares.

(***) On 28 December 2018, the Company issued 12,729,511 ordinary shares to its key executive under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) at par value 
VND 10,000 per share with the total amount of VND 127,295,110,000 in accordance with Shareholders’ Resolution No. 01_2018/BBDHDCD/TGDD dated 16 
March 2018. On 23 January 2019, the Company received the amended ERC issued by the DPI of Binh Duong Province for the above issuance of shares.

24.2 Capital transactions with owners

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. Each ordinary share with par value of VND 10,000 
carries one vote per share without restriction.

126,507,741Increase in capital

443,496,178Ending balance
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24.3 Shares - ordinary shares
25. REVENUES
25.1 Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services

87,738,378,978,636

87,029,254,963,723

67,698,540,686,709

67,117,558,601,292

Current year Previous year

VND

Of which:

Of which:

Sale of goods

709,124,014,913 580,982,085,417Rendering of services

(1,222,091,976,137) (1,358,736,494,531)Sale returns

Gross revenue

(1,222,091,976,137) (1,358,736,494,531)Less

86,516,287,002,499 66,339,804,192,178Net revenue

25.2 Finance income

255,850,966,106 215,225,365,033

Current year Previous year
VND

Income from early payments

342,083,875,229 250,509,808,127TOTAL

84,857,279,584  35,284,247,594Interest income

1,375,629,539 195,500Foreign exchange gains

Ending balance Beginning balance
Number of shares Number of shares

316,988,437

316,988,437

(234,160)

443,496,178

443,496,178

(369,285)

Authorized shares

Issued and paid up shares

Treasury shares held by a subsidiary

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

316,754,277443,126,893

Shares in circulation

Ordinary shares
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26. FINANCE EXPENSES

436,416,577,674 233,202,340,492

Current year Current yearPrevious year Previous year 
VND VND

VND

Interest expense

436,573,150,236 234,286,596,275TOTAL

1,514,702 1,058,093,283Foreign exchange losses

155,057,860 26,162,500Others

27. SELLING EXPENSES

4,642,223,762,206 3,633,714,629,390

Current year Current yearPrevious year Previous year 
VND

Labour cost

9,659,741,188,756 7,017,061,321,366TOTAL

1,145,925,271,537 677,599,450,628Depreciation and amortisation

3,321,577,014,086 2,239,009,502,968External services expenses

550,015,140,927 466,737,738,380Others

29. TRADING AND OPERATING COSTS

30. CORPORATE INCOME TAX
The statutory Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) rate applicable to the Group is 20% of 
taxable profits. 
The Group’s tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. As the 
application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, 
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be changed 
at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

55,198,024,925,23571,224,159,239,435Cost of merchandise goods sold

4,920,051,093,4516,289,900,986,436Labour costs

689,713,708,6321,222,868,683,717Depreciation and amortisation
(Notes 13, 14 and 18)

2,268,511,921,3813,344,061,745,863External services expenses

484,281,979,461564,523,672,820Others

63,560,583,628,16082,645,514,328,271TOTAL

28. GENERAL AND ADMINITRATIVE EXPENSES

1,286,336,464,0611,647,677,224,230Labour cost

12,114,258,00476,943,412,180Depreciation and amortisation

29,502,418,41322,484,731,777External services expenses

17,544,241,08114,508,531,893Other

1,345,497,381,5591,761,613,900,080 TOTAL
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30.1 CIT expense

Reconciliation between CIT expense and the accounting profit before tax multi-
plied by CIT rate is presented below:

Current year Previous year

639,743,605,453921,349,811,577

639,743,605,453933,836,738,446

(37,328,92,156)(27,827,229,661)

602,414,913,297906,009,508,785

Current tax expense

Deferred tax income

TOTAL

-12,486,926,869 Adjustment for under accrual of
tax from prior years

Current year Previous year

2,809,312,032,6463,786,318,568,918Accounting profit before tax

602,414,913,297906,009,508,785CIT expense

757,263,713,784 561,862,406,529At CIT rate of 20%

12,278,374,424 501,034,427

Adjustment for under accrual of
tax from prior years

114,559,216,154 32,719,798,356

Goodwill allocation

420,197,377 -

Losses from subsidiaries

Loss from an associate

9,001,080,177 7,331,673,985

12,486,926,869 -

Non-deductible expenses

Adjustments

30.2 Current tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. 
The taxable profit of the Group for the year differs from the accounting 
profit as reported in the consolidated income statement because it 
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or deduct-
ible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that 
have been enacted by the balance sheet date.
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63,210,600,900  

149,548,727,665 

59,733,000,000

120,870,473,608

3,477,600,900 12,114,905,074 

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax income

TOTAL

Accruals

Change of fair value of net assets
after business combination

75,026,468,954 51,958,562,189 23,067,906,765 23,373,398,179 Provision for obsolete inventories

11,313,726,546 9,164,907,946 2,148,818,600 1,820,410,340 Provision for warranty

(2,068,735) 14,003,473

(1,896,011,499) -

(16,072,208) 19,978,563 

27,827,229,661 37,328,692,156

(851,024,396) -

Unrealised foreign exchange

30.3 Deferred tax
The following are the deferred tax assets recognized by the Group, and the movements thereon, during the current and previous years:

Consolidated  balance sheet

Ending balance Beginning balance Current year Previous year

Consolidated  income statement
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31. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

32. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Significant transactions with its related parties during the current and previous years were as follows:

(*) The weighted average number of ordinary shares in the previous year has been retrospectively adjusted for the 107,597,146 shares under form of stock 
dividends on 23 November 2018.
There have been no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year and up to the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Current year

Related party Relationship Current year Previous yearNature of transaction

Previous year

2,205,679,630,4202,878,724,130,907Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (VND)

415,284,430430,372,609

5,3116,689

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share (*)

Thanh Phat Import Export One
Member Limited

Mr Robert Willet

Related party

Member of the
Board of Directors

Purchase of merchandise

Consultant fee

1,250,492,196,813 1,422,837,979,414

2,188,855,166 2,340,816,349

Basic and diluted earnings per share (VND per share)
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMITMENTS

The Group leases its office premises and distribution centres under operating 
lease agreements. The minimum lease commitments as at the balance sheet 
dates under the operating lease agreements are as follows:

Amounts due from and due to its related parties at the balance sheet date were as 
follows:

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and Management:

Current year Previous year

10,366,492,400 10,205,805,427Salaries and bonusRelated parties Relationship Ending balance Beginning balanceNature of
transaction

Tran Anh Digital
World Joint
Stock Company

Tran Anh Digital
World Joint
Stock Company

Tran Anh Digital
World Joint
Stock Company

Tran Anh Digital
World Joint
Stock Company

Related party

Short-term trade receivable

Short-term loan receivable

Short-term advance to suppliers

Other short-term receivables

Short-term trade payable

Sale of goods - 914,052,606,819

Related party Loan - 84,700,000,000

Thanh Phat Import
Export One Member
Limited

Related party
Purchase of
merchandise 1,124,551,935 34,401,056,088

Related party
Purchase of
merchandise - 61,052,093,599

Related party

TOTAL

Payment  on behalf

Interest receivable

- 4,370,188,723

-

-

1,145,194,444

5,515,383,167

Ending balance Beginning balance

1,208,903,202,473 1,824,274,093,337 Less than one year

4,191,874,416,605 5,999,533,912,690 From one to five years

2,298,751,793,341 2,653,513,133,360 More than five years

7,699,529,412,41910,477,321,139,387TOTAL
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date 
which would require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group.

Ly Tran Kim Ngan
Preparer
19 February 2019

Nguyen Duc Tai
General Director

Vu Dang Linh
Finance Director
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